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Inciepencent Auditors Report

To the Members of Innovent Spaces Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Innovent Spaces Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We_conducted our_audit_in accordance_with the_Standards_on_Auditing (SAs)_specified_under_
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described In the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innovent Spaces Private Limited

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion an whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating ettectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ot accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Innovent Spaces Private Limited

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the Company does not maintain
logs for the daily back-up of such books of account and other relevant books and papers, which
are kept in servers physically located in india..

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

B With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bes! of our information and

~ accarding to the explanations giventous:—— ==

a.

b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 34(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (* Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 34(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities (“‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Innovent Spaces Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Praveen Kumar Jain

Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 079893
Date: 29 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23079893BGYQWT8540
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

() (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(©) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

.. __(e).—_According_to the_information_and explanations given to_us and on the basis of our examination

ot the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending ayainsl the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) @) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering business of one-stop managed office
space services including soft services and supply of various consumables, including IT products,
office stationery and supplies, food and beverages etc. on a just-in-time need basis of the
customers. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company except as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Quarter Name of Particular | Amount Amount | Amount Whether
bank s as per as of return/st |
| books of reported | difference | atement
| account in the subsequ
quarterly ently
return/ rectified
| statement
30 Axis Bank | Stock and | 2,537 31 2,564 .81 27.50 Yes
September Book debt
2022 | statement
31 Axis Bank | Stock and | 3,440.16 3,434.74 (5.42) Yes
December Book debt
2022 statement Q\L .
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Continued)
Quarter Name of Particular Amount Amount Amount Whether
bank s as per as of return/st
books of reported | difference | atement
account in the subsequ
quarterly ently
return/ rectified
statement
31 March | Axis Bank Stock and | 4,698.03 4,621.76 (76.27) Yes
2023 Book debt
statement

(iif)

(@

(b)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii) ()

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,

limited—liability—partnership-or-any_other_parties -during—the_year._The_Company_has_made __ ..
investments in companies, in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

I he

Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has neither provided loans nor provided advances in the nature of

loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity. Accordingly, clause (iii) (a),
(iii) (c), (iii) (d), (iii) (e) and (jii) (f) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not

prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, as mentioned in (a) above, the Company has
neither provided loans nor advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided

security to any other entity

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any

guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of

Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident

Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Income-Tax,
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(b)

(viii)

(d

()

(®

) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

Goods and Service Tax and other statutory dues. As explained to us, the Company did not have
any dues on account of Duty of Customs and Employees State Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the Information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of our examination

~gf therecords ofthe-Company:the-Company-has-not-been-declared: a wilful defaulier by any

bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company has not used funds raised on short-
term basis for long-term purposes except with respect to negative working capital position
arising on account of trade payable and creditor for capital goods balance amounting to Rs
11,346.99 lakhs. The Company has invested the money in property, plant and equipments..

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. In our opinion, in respect of preferential
allotment of equity shares made during the year, the Company has duly complied with the
requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The proceeds from issue of equity shares
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Sectlon 192 of the Act are not applicable tu the Company.

{(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Seclivn 45-1A of Ihe Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
QL,

>
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Praveen Kumar Jain

Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 079893
Date: 29 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23079893BGYQWT8540
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Innovent Spaces
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”)

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financlal statemenls
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to Q\{-/
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Innovent Spaces Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Praveen Kumar Jain

Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 079893
Date: 29 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23079893BGYQWT8540
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Innovent Spaces Private Limited
CING CHSH00KL2015PTC133525
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Luklis excepr share data and per share data. and unless oiheraise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Share application moacy pending allotment

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises: and
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Other current liabilitics

Short-term provisions

TOTAL
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and cquipment
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets under development
Non-current investments
Long-term loans and advances
Deferred tax assets (Net)
Other non-current assets

Current asscts
Tradc receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

TOTAL
Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants

I'ifm Fegistratidn number: 101248W/W-100022

Praveen Kumar Jain
Parter
Membership No: 079893

Place Bengaluru
Date 29 September 2023

Notes

L) to

15
16
17
18

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

11931 102 02
27.935.22 3.036 48
28,054.53 3,138.50

- 9.919.98
7,506.23 4.292.34
19.796 26 12.117 57

47845 38242

27,780.94 16,792.33

4,920.74 3.399.33
982 55 808.73
1,776.22 2.404.38
17,528.03 16,056.51
98.83 104.88
25,306.37 22,773.83
81,141.84 52,624.64
40.532.03 25,376 97
406.49 159.36
2,113.10 2,166.55
284,78 420.36
96.49 210.00
6,397.16 4,054.18
19.500.43 13.547 79
69,330.48 45,935.21
3,362.69 2,740.12
1,046.17 34.18
5,566.70 2,910.80
1,835.80 1,004.33
11,811.35 6,689.43
81,141.84 52,624.64

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Innovent Spaces Private Limited

- R D Q

Rishi Das
Director
DIN - 00420103

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 September 2023

Place: Bengaluru
Datc: 29 Scptember 2023

Anshuman Das

Director
DIN - 00420772

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 September 2023
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Lakhs. except share data and per share data, and waless othervise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 59,240.66 35,143.22
Other income 20 281.94 175.41
Total income 59,522.60 35,318.63
EXPENSES
Purchases of traded goods 2,894.87 1.077.82
Employee benefits expense 21 4.324.37 3,049.24
Finance costs 22 1,087.32 2,360.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 5,545.45 3.873.78
Other expenses 23 43,607.58 26,839.71
Total expenses 57,459.59 37,200.90
Profit / (Loss) before tax 2,063.01 (1,882.27)
Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Profit / (Loss) after tax 2,063.01 (1,882.27)
Earnings per equity share [Face value of share Rs 1 each (Previous year Rs 1 each)]:
Rasic (in Rs) 113.01 (114.45)
——Diluted-fin-Re)}—— $0.48 -
Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalemeuts

As per out report attached of even date

Jor BSR& Co.LLLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Innovent Spaces Private Limited
Fifiveaistratioir number: 101248W/W-100022

-

P& Rishi Das
Partner Director
Membership No: 079893 DIN - 00420103
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 29 September 2023 Date: 29 September 2023

Meghna ¢
Direcioy

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 September 2023

Anshuman Das

Director
DIN - 00420772

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 September 2023
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A amonnts i Lakhs, except share data and per share data, and unicss othervise siated)

FFor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax 2,063.01 (1,882.27)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 5,54545 3,873 78
Reversal of provision for impairment of Property, plant and equipment - (38 80)
Provision for doubtful debts 648 59 (5931)
Property, plant and equipment written olf - 2303
Profit on redemption of investments (88.12) (25.83)
[nterest income (0.10) -
Deposits written ol - 2031
Provision for doubtful advances and deposits 22041 42324
Provision for doubtful advances - -
Finance costs 1,087 32 2,360 35
Provision for employee stock compensation expense (refer note 32) 35310 -
Lease equalisation on rental expenscs 603,80 7738
Loss on sale off of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assels (net) - 5068
Lease cqualisation on rental income (900,30) 267 81
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 9,533.16 5,025.37
Changes in working capital
Increase in trade reccivables (1,271.16) (185.02)
Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances and other assets (9,899.99) (3,398 57)
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables (468.78) 15190
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities and provisions 8.53821 3,354 94
Cash generated from operations 6,431.44 4,948.62
Income taxcs paid (net) (1,084.85) (517.88)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,346.60 4.430.74
Cash flow from investing activities
Parchase of fixed assects (tangible and intangible fixed assets, capitai work-in-progress, intangible assets (20.778.68) (4773 98)
under development) and capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment - 157
Purchase of other investments - (210.00)
Investment in equity shares of unlisted company (96 49) -
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds 29812 24189
Net cash used in investing activities (20,577.05) (4.190:51)
Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 8,63915 16,655 79
Repayment of long-term borrowings* (4,823.04) (14,308.29)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 919 20 943
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 10,099 91 -
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 2,480.01 -
Finance costs paid (1,072.88) (2.817.03)
Net cash gencrated from / (used in) financing activities 16,242.35 (460.10)
Net increase / (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,011.89 (219 87)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3234 25221
Cash and cash equivalcnts at the end of the year (refer note 16) 1.044.23 32.34
Note:
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 16)
Cash in hand 490 979
Balances with banks 1,039.33 22:55
1,044.23 32.34

(*) Includes borrowing which has been converted into share application money pending allotment of Rs. Nil (31 March 2022: Rs 9,919 98)

Significant accounting policics 1
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statcments

As per our report attached of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Innovent Spaces Private Limited
P sopsteptipn number: 101248 W/W-100022

Z <
1 Rishi Das Anshuman Das
Parincer Drrector Durector
Mcembership No 079893 DIN - 00420103 DIN - 00420772
Place Bengaturu Place: Bengaluiu Place Bengaluru Place Bengaluru

Date 29 Scptember 2023 Date 29 Scplember 2023 Date 29 September 2023 Date 29 Scptember 2023



Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN: U45400KA2015P7TC133523

Notes to financial statements

(All amonnis in Lakhs, except share data and per share data, and unless othervise stated)

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Background
Innovent spaces Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 14 January 2015 as a private limited company The Company has its registered office at Bengaluru,
Karnataka. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of one-stop managed office space services including soft services and supply of various consumables, including IT
products, office stationery and supplies, food and beverages etc on a just-in-time nced basis of the customers

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convenlion on the
accrual basis GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other provisions of the Act

As per amendment to schedule TT1 division 1 of the Acl, the financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees rounded off in lakhs unless otherwise stated

1.3 Going concern
The Company’s performance has improved significantly over the last couple of years There has been capital infusion during the current year resulting in improvement in net
worth of the Company when compared to previous year, though the current liabilities continue to exceed the current assets as at 31 March 2023 The projections for the next
year indicates that the Company will continue to earn profits in the next year

Based on approved business plans, availability of funding limits, secure new financing facilities / replace existing facilities and their ability to raise funds, etc. management
believes that the Company will be able to continue Lo generate sufficient cash to meet its obligations as and when they [all due. These financial statements, do not, therefore,
nclude any adjustments relating (o recoverability and classificatlion of assets / liabililies and accordingly. the assumption of going concern is considered appropriate in the
preparation of these financial statements

1.4 Use of estimates

q

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requircs to make jt s, estimates and assumptions
thal affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements  Such estimates and assumptions are
based on management's evaluation of relevant lacts and circumstances as on the date of financial siatements The actual outcome may diverge from these estimates

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods aftected

n

Current/Non-curreut classification

All assets and labilities are classified into current and non-curtent

Assety

An assel is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

a) 1t is expected to be realised in, or is intended for salc or consumplion in, the company's normal operating cycle,

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) it 1s expected Lo be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used Lo scttle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets

All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle,

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c)it1s due to be settled within 12 months afler the reporting date; o1

d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of' the liability for al least 12 months aflei the repoiting date Terms of a liability thal could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue ol equity mstruments do not aflect its classification

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities All other liabilitics are classitied as non-current

1.6 Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents Based on the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months

1.7 Inventories
The Company procures inventory from its vendors and immediately sells these to its customers, who are generally the tenants Such goods are procured, primarily, upon
receiving orders from its customers and therefore, physical possession of the inventory is never held by the Company, though the risks and rewards associated with such
inventory arc bestowed upon the Company for a short while The sale and purchase of such goods is recognized at the transaction price, in the ordinary course of business at the
point when the property in goods in effectively transferied from the vendors to the Company and fiom the Company lo the cuslomers respectively Such recognition is exclusive
of woods and service Lax, and is net of returns, tiade discounts and quanuty discounts. if any

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow (o the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
a) Rental income

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lock-in period of the leases Lease
incentives and other charges like maintenance and electricity charges uranted are recognized as an integral part of Lhe total rental income Fees for other services are recognised
as per the contractual terms when the services are provided

b) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognised when property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to
the customer and no signilicant uncertainty exists regarding Lhe amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection The
amounl recognised as revenue is exclusive of goods and service tax, and is net of returns, trade discounts and quantity discounts

¢) Overages

Overages consist of other chargeable services like rent of conference room, parking charges, and allied activities Income from ovcrages is recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss when the senvices are provided

d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established and gain/loss is recognised on redemplion of the investments

e) Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages are recognised on termination of Lhe lease by the customer during the lock-in period in accordance with the terms of agreement
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
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L9

1.10

L1l

1.1

»

1.13

Property, plant and equipment
a) Recognition and measurement

Property. plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation The cost of property. plant and equipment includes lreight
dutics, taxes (excluding the refundable taxes) and other incidental expenses related 1o the acquisition or construction of the respective assets

Cost incurred includes any costs directly auributable to bringing the asset (o the location and condition necessary for it to be capable ot operating in the manner intended by
management

Barrowing costs directly atrributable to acquisition or construction of those property. plant and equipment which necessarily take a substantial period of time to gt ready for
their intended use are capitalised  Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred

Amount paid towards acquisition or construction of fixed asset unil the date of capitalisation are shown as capital work in progress

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at cach balance sheet dale and the cost of the property. plant and equipment not ready lor
their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital advance

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow 1o the
Company and the cosl of Lhe item can be measured reliably

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected (o arise from the continued use of the asset Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales procceds and the carryiny amount
ol the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss

b} Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule 111 1o the Act And the asset
value which is lessor than Rs 5000, will be depreciated fully However, where the management’s estimale of the remaining useful life of Lhe assets on a review subsequent to the
lime of acquisition is difTerent, then depreciation is provided over the remaining useful life based on the revised useful life

Pursuant Lo this pulicy, Mana ont'= estimates of useful life of the followinz assets are as follows

Assct Category Estimated useful life Useful life as per
Schedule M1
Leasehold improvements (building) 10 years Lease term
Plant and machinery 10 years 10 years
Furnitures and fixtures 10 years 10 years
Computers 3 years 3 years
Vehicles 8 years 8 years
Office equi S vears 5 years

Pro-tai depreciation is provided un all propely, plat aod eyuipiczit puocdissed o suld b the yoai

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at their acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation Computer software and Trademarks and Copyrights are amortised over 3 years

Intangible assets under development pertains to development of internally penerated software for the operations of the Company Cost of the asset is recognised only with
respect to the cost of the devclopment stage upon fulfilling of the criteria's referred to in the provisions of Accounting Standard - 26 Cost pertaining to preliminary stage
(rescarch phase) has been charged off (o statement of profit and loss

Impairment of assets

The Company periodically assesses whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a cash generating unit may be impaired If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset For an asset or group of asscts that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs  If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the profit and loss account. 1f at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
carrying amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized

Foreign exchange transactions

Forcign exchange transactions are recorded in Indian rupecs at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions Exchange difference arising on
forcign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the profit and toss account for the year

Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rate on that date; the resultant exchange
differences arc recognised in the profit and loss account Non-monelary items are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency and are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of transactions

Taxation

Income-tax expense comprises of current tax (i e amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with Indian Income tax laws) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting
the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year) The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities
or assets are recognized using Lhe tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Current Tax
Current Tax is determined at (he amount of tax payable in respect of laxable income for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961 Current tax asset and current tax liability are

offset only when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the assct and liability on net basis

(This space has been imentionally left blank)
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Minimum Alternale Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT ) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act. 1961 is recognised as current tax in the statement of profit and loss The credit available under
the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability MAT credil 1ecognised as an assel is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and
written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assels and Liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of timing differences between the book profit and tax profit Deferred Tax Assets and
Liabilitics, other than on carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognised when it is reasonably certain that there will be future taxable income
Deferred Tax Asset on carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, if any, is recopnised when it is virtually certain supported by convincing evidence that suflicient future
taxable income will be available

Deferred Tax Asscts/ Liabilitics arc reviewed as at cach balance sheel date and written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain (as the case
may be) Lo be realised

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates The efect on Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period of substantive cnactment of the change

Tax impact of timing difference which arise during he (ax holiday period are recognised only to the extent of those diflerences which are reversed afler the tax holiday period

1.1

n

Provisions

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past obligating event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to setle the obligation at the balance sheet
date These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted Lo reflect the current best estimates

Contingencies
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fies, penaltics, et are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and
the amount can be estimated reliably

1.15 Contingent liabilities and contingent asscts
A conlingenl liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is
remote Conlingent assets arc ncither recognised nor disclosed in the financial stalements However, conlingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virally certain that an
inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs

1.16 Cash flow statement

Cach flow statement is reported nsing the indirect methnd wherehy net prafit/(Inss) hefore tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows arising from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated

=)

1.17 Earnings / (loss) per share

The basic carnings / (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) atlributable 10 equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity
sharcs outstanding during the year  The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving
basic carnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilulive potential equity shares
Dilutive potential equity shares are decmed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date In computing diluted carnings per share, only
potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included

1.18 Employee benefits
a) Shart-term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-tenn employec benefits These bencfits include salaries and wages,
bonus and ex-gratia Short-term employee benefit obligations arc measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected (o be paid € g, under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past scrvice
provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably

b) Defined bencfit plans

Gratuity The Company’s gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of gratuity obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefil entitlement and measure cach unit separately Lo build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities/bonds as at the balance
sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations ~Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs

¢) Compensated Absences
Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other long term employee benefits The obligation in respect of compensated absences is provided on
the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes cach period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated
future cash flows The discount rales used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plan, is based on the market yields as at balance sheet datc on
Government securities, having maturily periods approximating to the terms of related obligations

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss To the extent the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the utilization
or encashment of the accumulated compensated absences, Lhe liability determined based on actuarial valuation is considered 1o be a current lia

d) Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment bencfit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no lesal or constructive
obligation Lo pay turther amounts. | hic Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme Obligations for cunttibutions

Lo defined contribution ptans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit and loss in the periods during which the refated services are rendered by employees e

ES,

i--‘ o (Thus spuce has been intentionally toft blank)
-
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1.19

1.20

1.2

1.24

Leases
Leases under which the Company assumes substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Such assets acquired are capitalised al fair value of
the assel or preseni value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lcase, whichever is lower

For operating leases, lease payments (excluding cost for services, such as insurance and maintenance) are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term The lease term is the non-cancellable period for which Lhe sub-lessee has agreed to lake on lease the asset together with any further
periods for which the sub-lessec has the option to continue the lease of the asset, with or without further payment. which option at the inception of the sub-lease it is reasonably
certain that the sub-lessee will exercise

Initial direct costs
Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating leasc are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss over the lock-in period of the
leases

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balance in bank in current accounts The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash Lo be cash equivalents

Segment reporting

The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business seuments The Company's sole business is sub-leasing of ged oflice spaces, as
a service. of fully or partly equipped premises and provides a unique ‘one-stop’ experience Lo clients, its principal gcographical segment is India Accordingly. the amounts
appearing in these financial statements relate to this primary business segment Further the Company wenerates its income only in India and accordingly, no disclosures are

required under secondary segment reporting

Employee share based payments

The Company has crealed a stock options pool of its own shares for the employees of the Company The Company measures and discloses such cost using intrinsic value
method The compensation cost is amortized over the vesting period of the stock option on a straight line basis

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity.
over the period Lhal the employees unconditionally become entitled 1o the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for
which the rclated service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards
that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of
the share-based payment is mcasured 10 reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

Investments

Investments are assets held by an enterprise for earning income by way of dividends, interest, and rentals, for capilal appreciation, or for other benefits to the investing
enterprise A current investment is an investment that is by its nature readily realisable and is intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
im estment is made A long term investment 1s an investment other than a current investment 1 he carrying amount tor current investments is the lower of cost and falr value and
aneadjusimant-s-passed-1o-Stasement of Profitand Loss.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Asul
31 Murch 2023

Axat
31 March 2023

TOO0000 (31 March 2022 7000000 shares of Re 1 cich) cquuy shares of Re | each (U T
Y 00,000 (31 March 2022 9,00 000 shates of Re 1t caich) 0 00174 Senies A compulsorily comertible PIIEH il Hin
preference shares of Rs 10 cach
00000 ¢33 March 2022 3,00.900 shares of Rs 10 cach) D 001", Series B compultsorily com citible Ty 300
preference shares of Rs 10 ¢ach
[ssued, subscribed and fully paid up
1833572 (31 March 2022 16.44.608 shares of Re | cach) equuiy shares of Re 1 eich 1834 16 44
855792 (31 March 2022 792 shiares of Rs 10 cachiy 0 431" Series A campulserily consenible 8558
preference shares of Rs 10 cach
133213 (31 March 2022 Nil) 0 0015 Series B compulsarily com entible preference shares of Rs. 10 cach 1539 -
£14.31 ma.nz
Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
s at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mool shares Amannt i of dliares Amnung
ming of the vear 16 44 608 16 43 1644608 16 43
Issited during the year | R& 96 189 - -
Al the end of the vear JAM.33.573 1834 16,144,608 1645
Reeon ion of ,001% Series A compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporti
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_ No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Al the beginning of the vear R.33.792 8558 R.55.792 85 5%
|sssed durng (hy = = -
At the end of the v 8.55,792 83.58 855,792
Reonmeitinfinn of B.001% Series B compulsarily comertilile preference shares sutetanding at the heginning amid ot the end of the repnrtiog vear
As al As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

. No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Al e beginping ¢l the year - = - -
Issued dunine the vear 155913 15.39 - =
Atthe end of the vear 153918 15.4Y = -

Fopity sharebiliers bnlding mir than 8% o i

s by withy the s of shares el af e e of e sear as given eho

Asal
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

No of shares

Tame of the shave holder

‘Eqnil_\ shaves, fully paid

% of holding, No of shares il aliling

N 408312 22707 408312 24 83%
Mepana Agrmal 0312 2274, 108312 2483
Anshuman Das 816624 H 8.16.624 446300
Calgesnel Tezanolopkse Priviae Laomils 133312 727% - 000%%

Compulsority conyertible proference sharchubders poriey A lind

As at
31 March 2023

v ol sl s along with the number of shores lievd i fhe endl of the sear B given belon:

Asat
31 March 2022

Name af the share holder No of shares

%o of holding, No of shares % uf holding

0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference sharcs, fully paid

Arvali hinestiient Holdings AT

97 83% R.37.200

Compulsorily conserible preference sharcholders s

Asal
31 March 2023

Name of the share holder No of shares

0.011% Compulsarily Convertible Preference shares, fully paid

%o of huleling Noof sharey % of holding

WesiBridge ALF 1 1.50,064 97 50%% - -
Share holding of pomaoters as at 31 March 2023

As at As al

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % Change during the

Promoter name No, of shares % of total shares No, uf shares il ol shures A
Rishi Das 408312 2227% 408312 24 K3% =2 86%%
Meghna Agarval 408312 2227 408312 24 83% -2504%
Anshuman Das 816,624 44 540 816624 49.65% -5 12%
Total 16.33.248 89.07% 16, 35,248 F ST 10,24 %%
Share holding of nromoter: ai 31 March 2022

As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Promoter nume No. of shares % of tolal shares

No. of shares % of total shares 7o Change during the

yonr
Risli Das 408312 24 83% 6.577H 3999% B RN
NMeghna Agarwal 408312 24 3% 158 880 966 1 me
Anshunian Das 816624 49 65" 8,16 624 49 63" 0,00%%
Total 16,33,248 99.31% 16.33.248 99.31% 0.40%
Shares resermod for issie un 'er oplions aml contracts/ ¢ for sale of shares/ disinyesiment:
As al 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No, of shares Amoun( No, of shares Amount
Under Employce Stock Oplion Scheme 2022 57 200 cquity shares of Re | 57 200 0357 - -
each il an exercise pnee of Rs 6.729 Y3 per share
For compulsorily conyertible comulative preference shares
584048 cquity shares of Re 1 cach (also refer to -ights preferences and SEL048 384 383048
resinclions attached to preference shares)
133913 cquits shares of Re 1 cach (also refer (o rights picferences and 133913 134

restactions attached to preference shares)




Fonoveat Spaces Private Limited

CIN UASH00K 120131710 [13323

Notes (o financind statements (continued)

(AN ameanrts on £ s eve prsbare dasa and per sbare data and wnless othersise staed,

(11} The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equi
The Company has only one class of shire referred 1o as equity shares having par salue of Re 1 each holder of the equus share as reflected m the records of the Company as of the date of the
sharcholder meeting, 15 entitled 1o one vole i respect of eacl share held for all niatlers subniitied 1o vole m the sharcholders' mecting
The dividend proposed (if amy) by the Boird of Dircclors is subject (0 {he approval of the sharcholders m the ensuing Annval General Meeting The Company Tas not declared any disidends
during the current and the pres wons year
In the cvent of hqmdauon of the Company  the holders of equity shares with be entitled (o recene any of the remaining assets of (he Campany afier distribution of all preferential amounis The
distribution w1ll be 1n proportion to the mimber of equity shares beld by the sharcholders

(h} The riphts, preferences and restrictions attached 1o 0.001% compulsorily conventible preference shares

The company hias serics A and serics B compulsorily comentible preference shares having fice value of Rs 10 per shure which 1s fully paid up The serics A and senes B conpulsorily
comertibte preference sharcholders are cligible for one vote per share held and are entitled to a preferential dividend at the rate of 0 001% per annum and arc cumulatise and shalt accrue
from vear fo year whether or not paid and accried dividends shall be piud m full (logether with dis idends accrued from prior years) and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable
upon shares of any other class or series 1 the samc fiscal sear Tn the cvent of hquidation. the series A and serics B fsorily comertible p are cligible to recene the
remaining asscts of the company afier distribution of all preferential amounis in proportion Lo their sharcholding The serics A and series B ils comertible p shares may be
comeried info Equiy Sharcs at am time at the option of the holder of the Serics A and series B compulsorily cons ertible preference share in the manner and extent and be subject 10 the
restrictions and limilations as contained in the share holders agreement

Apgregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued fur consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately precceding the
rennrting date:

(i) The Company had issucd bonus shares of Rs 15 41 820 on issuc of 13 41,820 equity shares of Re 1 cach for the ycar ended 31 March 2020

(it} The Company has issued bonus shares of Rs 80 23 050 on 1ssuc of 8 02 303 compulsorily comertile preference shares of Rs [0 cach for the sear ended 31 March 2020

1.51 171 (31 March 2022 Nil) equity shares of Re 1 cach have been allotied as fully paid up pursuant to a comversion of foan withoul pay ment being received in cash

(iv) There have been no buy back of shares

During the year (he board tn s meeting has approved rec and allotted shares as below

(i} 1.31 171 Equity sharcs of Re 1 and 1.21 Y11 scries B ily comertible p shares having face valuc of Rs 10 on 04 April 2022:
37 793 Equity shares of Re 1 and 30.479 scries B compulsorily comertible preference shares having face valuc of Rs 10 on 06 June 2022 and
(ini) 1.523 scrics B compulsorily convertible preference shares having faceaalue of Rs 10 on 10 Junc 2022

3 Resenes and surplus

Purticulars Aslat At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Decficit in St of Peofis anil Lo
Opening balance (6,762 43) (4880 17)
Add: Profil / (Loss} for (he year 2.063.01 (1.88227)
Closing balance (4,699.43) (6,762.44)
Sccurities promium
Opening balance 9.798 92 9798 92
Add: Received on issuc of equity and preference shares (Refer note below) 22 182 62 3
Closing balance 32,281.54 9,798.92
Employgoe stocl options outklunding nccount
Opening balance = =
ImployeccompensafionexpensesTor thevear TRefer-now=32) 353:10=
Llosing halance — 354.10 -
Total 2703532 305648

Nolc : During year the Compam has recenved share premium Rs 12 398 10 (31 March 2022 : Nil) on issuc of 1.88.964 cquity sharcs and Rs 10.084.52 (31 March 2022 Nil) on issuc of
1.53.913. 0.00| % Compulsory Com ertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

4 Long-term horrowings

N As al Ax at
Sarticulary 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dchentures

Secured
- Nil (31 March 2022 400) 15 80% non-convertible debentures of Rs £0.00.000 cach (refer note 4 1) - 202000
2,020.00
Loans
Secured
- from banks (refer note 4 2, 4 3 and 5.914.52 25962
5914.52 259.62
Unsecured
- [rom related partics (refcr note 4.5 and 24) 1,391 71 201272
1,591.71 2,012,72
Total 7,506.23 4,292.34

+£.1 Terms of the Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD)
During the year the company has fully redeemed 400 Non-Com crtible debenture which had below 1enins and conditions
+.1.(a) - Terms and conditions
15 %0% Non Transferable, Secured. 200 Non-Convertible debenture Series B-tranche | of Rs 10.00.000 cach and 200 Non-Comsertible debenture Series B-tranche 2 of Rs 10,00.000 cach
having no voting rights 1ssucd (o Spark Equilized Credit Solutions Fund 1. The Comipany had appeinted Vistara ITCL (India) Limited as the debenture trusiee. who acted as a debenture trusice
for the debenture holders The proceeds of (lic loan was utilized towards repayment of existing financial indebledness of the company as agreed with the Debenture Holder

4.1.(b) - Interes( rate

The NCDs carvied cash coupon of 15 80% per annum payable mounthly
4.1.(c) - Redemplion tenor

Non-Comsertible Debentures Serics B tranche -1 and Seres B tranclic -2 was repayable on 36(h monthly instalment (35 equal monthly instalments of Rs 110 00 cach and 36th instaliment of
Rs 150.00) beginning from 30 October 2021 The Company in its board meeting held on 15 Ocleber 2022 had decided (o fully redeen these Non-Comertible debentures

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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CIN DHS00R 2 SP 0 133527
Netes to finan
£ U amouns o Lkl
4.1 Terms of the Non-Convertible Dehentures (NCD)
1.1.(d) - Secarity
1 Shares m demalerialized form were pledged 10 the extent of 13 % of contrallng imierest of the Compans on Mully dilmed basis The pledge mereases (o 26%0 only m the cise of an event of
defaull ais per executed debenture (rust deed dited 035 October 2021
2 First charge and pari passu (uoil repayment of Series B debentures after which the charge shall be exclusine) chirge by wan of hypothecation ever the Innoprop Spaces i Ltd controlled
account as per deed of hy pethecation dated 05 October 2021

Atatements (cantinaed)

NPy M duat i dados otlonese o b

sl

Second charge on fixed assets and cureent assels of the Company as per deed of hy pothecation dated 15 October 2021

Personal Guarantee of M Rislu Das and Mr Anshuman Das

Corporate Guarimtee froms Innoprop Spices Private Limiled

6 Creation of cash collateral of Rs 210 00 deposit ny a mutual fund with the lien and sct ofT marked m favour of the debentnre holder

4.1.(¢) 15.80% Non Trarsferable Secured. 200 Non-Conventible debentire senes B-iranche | and 200 Non-Comertible debenture serics B-tranche 2 sith an ontstanding of Rs Nil (31 March
2032 3 340 00) and current maturitics of long-tern debl Rs Nil (31 March 20221 320000

[

4.2 Axis bank term loan
The company has been sanctioned Term Joan 1and Terni ozt [ by the Axis Bank Term loan 1 cludes 2 tranches (TL1 and TL2) of Rs 2 300 00 and Rs. 5.200.00 respectively fully drawi
Term loan 11 includes thiree tranches (TL3, TL4 and TL3) of Rs 2 300 00 cach TL3 of Rs 1 139 15 drawn as on 31 March 2023 with below Ierins and condilions

4.2.(a) Purpose

TL1 aud TL2  For capital expenditure including reimbursment of Rs 2 300 00 incurred duning the last sty months from the date of sinclion
TL3 Thd and TL3 Towards capilal cxpenditure on interiors. fitouts and pre-operative expenses for the buildings planned to be occupied
4.2.(b) Rale of interest

TLL 3 Months MCLR + | ) as ou 31 March 2023 10 15%
TL2 3 Months MCLR + ) 35% as on 31 March 2023 10 00%4
TLI 3 Months MCLR + 135 ason 31 Marcli 2023 10 2075

4.2.(c) Tenor / Door (o Door tenor

60 months [rom (he date of drawacwit of cach tranche

4.2.(d) Repayment

Principal to be repad 1 GO equal monthly insialments ds per tranche drawdown commencing at (he end of one month from the date of first drinvdown of each tranche and 1iterest sliall be
served on monthly busis as applicable

4.2.(¢) Security

(1) Primary : (a) First and exclusive charge on (he entire assel and movable fived assels of the company both present and future (b) Escrow of current and future rent receivable

b

{2y Collateral ¢ (n) Exchusive cb M Lal, lind Careerned Te 2 Pvi Lid
Mature uf the propeets

e propret s o be gross collpfreilized with sroup ciilities Hirepro Consulii

Properin detaily

Dwner of (Be property

idemial Flar o, #0311 Black Sih Fleer. Daffodily, Adarch patm Bellane Agmwil
Flat Mo S0d [T Bleck SilvFleer BafTodili Adarih pain Bellandur e Al
Vil Me 26T Adarsh Bl ol s no, FFL & BT Vit Benpalote Rishik Dy
Siig Mo, 158 16 Propenty Mo, 8 SR oficors colon . Tih main moadl. Fed Block, Kosmingals Rzl Dasamid - Anslpmm
iy
Villa Mo 268 Lape 11 Adarsh Pabm veiree| Phase 2 of) owter ring roudl B Amshrrimuim D
Ll propeny. v No 1027 Roadivalu viflaes bapebiar. Sarjapier Do
deniial Sile v, | | sector & BDA HSR Livoul, Banimlore S60 102 Rzl Das

(b Fraed depandl from corporale guarantor Carcernet Techaologics Pyt Ltd with 0.3X cover for TL3. TL4 and T1LF al R 7,500 10

4.2.1) Persondl guardnied

1rves ocable aad unconditional personal ante2 of Richi Das Mephna Agarwal Anshnman Das and Ashu Agarsal Personal guarantee of Meglina Agarwal and Ashu Agarwal is proposed to
tlic the extent of the value of collateral secunty

4.2.(g) Corporate guarantee

Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guaraniee of Carcernel Technologics Pat Lid

4.2.(h) DSRA

2 months interest and principal instalnient in ihe form of FD/Liquid sccurity lien marked in fasour of Axis Bank

4.2.(i) Asis Bank ter Joau TL1 TL2 and TL5 with an outstanding of Rs 5,812 55 (31 March 2022 Nil} and current maturitics ol long-term debl Rs 1999 99 (31 March 2022 Nil)

4.3 Terms of the Vehicle Loan
) Audi velucle loan (ully drawn with an ontslanding of Rs Nil (31 March 2022 23 90) (current maturilics of long-term debt Rs. 1036 (31 March 2022 13 54) carrying interest ratc of
8 71% per annum re-pavable in 60 cqual monthly i Rs 1.27 cacl begi > from 01 Novenber 2018 primarily sccured by exclusive hy pothecation of 1he veliicle

(b Mercedes Bens. vehicle loan fulty drawn with an owstanding of Rs 1466 (3 1 March 2022 43 46) (current maturitics of long-term debt Rs 1492 (31 March 2022 13 87)) camying intcrest
rate of 7 30% per annum. re-pasable in 39 cqual monthly i Rs | 38 cacn from 03 December 2021 prinuarily sccured by exclusive hiypothecation of the ychicle

() Alcazar vehicle loan fully drawn with an outslanding of Rs. 14 38 (31 March 2022 22 93) (currenl maluritics of long-term debt Rs. 442 (31 March 2022 4 12)) carnying inlerest rate of
7 10% per annum. re-payable in 60 cqual mountbhly i Rs (46 cach begi from 05 Februany 2022, primarily secured by exclusive hypothecation of the schicle

4.4 Terms 6f the Goaranteed Emerpiney Credit Line (GECL)
Repaniment lerng Primsipal (0 be repaid in 60 cqual wonihly italments

Towards takcover of GECL limits from [eui=siic Bank

3 Month MCLE +035% Ason 31 March 2023 U=,

(i) Extension of Sccondany Charge over priman & colliteral sccurity for CC/AVCDL [acilitics (except guaraniees)
(i) 100% credit guarantee by NCGTC

Chelsfatding o at

long term debt

Lomulslallding ol Rs 7292 (31 March 2022 Rs 315 12) and Rs 1% 32 (31 March 2022 Rs § 14 25) relating Lo current maturitics of

4 s al the buan
Loans from Related parrs
My, Hishi Das Mr, Anshuman Das HirePro Consulting | Carcernct Technelogies
Pai, Lad. M Ll
Seured/Llivecurid Unsecured Linyecured Knsscnred Limseonred

Purposc Filout and interior works [ Filoul and tnterior works | Fitout and interior Fitout and intcrior works
works
Lia (o b rgepurid (n 1h=Miir-25 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Intcrest 15" per annum with effeet [ 15% per annum wul ffect | 12% per annum with | 12% per annum on
from | April 2019 from 1 April 2019 cffect from | April compannded basis
2021
Cmtstan 1s a1 31 March 2022 1A0R 1Y 944 53 &1),02 1,001
[ntercst accrued bul not due as at 31 March 2022 - -
O as a1 31 March 2023 7R 1Y = 5

807 53

Interest accnued but not duc as at 31 March 2023

(Tins space has been intentionally left hank)
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Notes to financial sttements (continued)

CHEamonnts i Lk, cxeopr share dutacand per sharc aata aned wilosy otham e statedi

5 Other tong (erm liabilities

. Asal As al
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease deposits (Reler Note below) 1677201 R 805 79
Lease equahsation reserse 302425 331228
Total 19.796.26 12,117.57
e Lol
Nole OQutof the aboe. lease deposits of Rs 233 37 (31 March 2022 Nil) have been ginven to related pariies Reler note 24
6 Long-term provisions
As al Asat
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prosision for graluity (refer nole 27) 248 30 20043
Provision or compensaled absences 230.13 |71 4
Tatal 47545 352.42
7 Short-term borrowings
Particulirs As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
- Short-lerm loan from banks (refer nete below and note 35) 277271 [ 85351
- Currenl matuniuies of long lerm boriewings (cefer note 4) 214803 1,465 80
Unsecured
- Current maturities of long (erm borrowings rom related party {refer note 4 5 and 24) - 80 02
Total 4.920.74 3.399.33

Tei1ms of Short-term borrowings:

During the year the company has closed the working capital with Deutsche Bank and availed the loan from Axis Bank with below terms & conditions

(a) Short term loan from banks mcludes working capital loan with an outstanding of Rs 2.772 71 against sanctioned limns of Rs 2,800 00 from Awis Bank (31 March 2022

Rs 193000 from Deutsche Bank)

(b) The interest on (he facility 15 3 months MCLR plus 0 60% which is ¢ 30% as on 31 Marcl: 2023 (MCLR plus 4 07%) which was 10 42% which was 31 March 2022

(¢) Sccurity :

(1) Primary - (a) First and exclusive charge on the entire asset and movable fixed assets of the company both present and future (b) Escrow of current and [uture rent recervable
(2) Collateral - First and exclusiye charge on residential/commercial properties valued at Rs G.459 00 and cross collateralized with group companies Careemel Technologtes Pyt Lid & Hirepro Consulling Pyt

Lid

(d:Personal guarantec: Irrevocable und uncondiiional personal guarantee of Rishi Das, Meghna Agarwol. Anshuman Das and Ashu Agarwal
(0) Corpornte punrantoo: Irreyocable and unconditional personal juarantz o Carecmel Technalagies Pyt 11id and Hirepra Cansuling Pyt 1id
() Purpose: Towards lakeover of imuts frem Deutsche Bank and (o meel the vorking capital iecutrements

8 Tradce payables

1.853 51 against sanctioned limits ot

S .
Particulars O LIEg
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tolal outstanding dues of micro entetprises and small enterprises (MSME) (ral?i nole 33) __' YR2 55 AN 73
Toltal eutstanding dues of eréditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 177632, 2l 38
Total 2.758.77 3.213.11
Agcing i ude payables as at 31 March 2023 is as follows
Particulars Ot fing for Mellowing periody rom due date of payment
Unbilled Not duc Less fhan 1 year ~2years 2-3 years Mare thon § years Tatal
(i} MSME 11345 85312 1396 002 - - 982 35
(ii) Others 610 04 990 94 143 70 2477 676 - 177622
(iii) Disputed dues MSME - - - - = F e
(1) Disputed dues Others - - N - > B I
723.49 1.844.06 159.66 24.7% 6.76 - 2.758.77
8 Trade payable (Continued)
Ageing for frade payables as ai 31 March 2022 is as follows
Particulars h ling for fellowing peciods from due date of pavmient
Unbilled Not duc Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 vears Total
(i) MSNE 9902 51782 19116 073 - - 808 73
(u) Others 420 94 98Y 69 986 83 362 330 - 2.404 38
(11) Disputed dues MSME S = - - = =
(1v) Disputed dues Others - - = = 5 a 3
519.96 1.507.51 1.177.99 4.35 3.30 - 3.213.11

(This space has been micntionally lefi blank)




Innoven! Spaces Private Limited
CIN U43400KA2015P7¢ 133523
Noles (o financial statements (continued)

(Al amowni m Lakhs exeepn share date und per sharc dusa and unlows other e siated,

9 Other current liabilitics

Particulars GoEs st
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease Deposits (refer note below) 10.086 07 923204
Book overdrafi 0ol 274
Adyance from cuslomers 134 46 42123
Unearned revenue 434 286 70
Lease equalisalion reserye 2370 86 147903
Other pay ables
- for salan 1799 2123
- for statulon dues 454 77 32325
- for purchase of (ixed asseis 4457 96 435977
- 1o related parties (refer note 24) 157 284 62
Trin 17.525.03 16.056.51
Note Of the above Rs Nil (31 March 2022 Rs 368 20) pertains 10 related parties Refer note 24
10 Short-term provisions
. As at Asal
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Proiston for gratuily (refer note 27) 3639 4172
Provision for compensaled absences 62 44 63 16
Totpl 'J!i.g 104.54

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes (o financial statements (continued)

(A cmenns i Ladln oxcapn hard data and pei she diicos o dr'on othenose starcd)

12 Non-current Investments
(Vahid at cost unless statcd othannse)

Particulars

Asat
31 Mureh 2023

As al
31 March 2022

Quolted v estments m mutval fund<*

Lol

Tl

- NIl (31 March 2022 8 53 851 88) umits ol Axas Short term - Growth-Regular plan pALED
Invesiment im equily instruments -
- 73 (31 March 2022 Nil} cquin shares ol AIQT Foundny Private Linited of INR 10 cach._(ully pard up 0649 -
AN 210,10
* Lin lien against Non-Comertible debentures - it<iir note 4
2 bk vailise sl ket v 2lue af groted B CIL ILCTLCT o boal s alos of wngueated tian-current i estments arc as follows
————
As al Asat

Purtic

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

Quoled non-current inxestments

- Apgregate book valuc - 20
- Aggrepate markel value - 21286
Aggregale book alue of unquoted non-current i estments 96 49 -
13 Long-term loans and
. Asat Asal
Farticutars 31 Mazch 2023 31 March 2022
To partics other thaa related parties
(Unsecurcd. considired good)
Advance (ax. net provision for ax 403830 297365
Capntal advances 168 94 35067
Prepaid expenses 162127 687 58
Other advanccs 175 63 -
Loans and advances (o cmplosces 7282 42 2%
Total 6.397.16 __;A
14 Other non-curren
. Asat Ay at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
To partics other than related parties
(Unsecured. consutored good)
Lcase deposits 16.33> 12 11.445 05
Other deposiis 116 (8 9 74
DS Term Depoat {refer nole 1 2) 470 81 -
Unbilled revenue - rent straightlinmng 2416.63 3007 4u
19338.74 13,547.79
To related pa
Leasc deposils 161,69 -
161,69 -
Total == | 450043 13.547.79
el e
15 Trade receivables
A Asal Asal
Skl 31 March 2023 31 Murech 2022
Unsecured
-Considered good (reler nole below) 3.362.69 2. 741012
-Considercd doubtlul R68. 41 22075
4,231.10 2,960.87
Less Provision for doubtful debi (RGR AT (2X073)
Tutal 336209 2,740.12
Mote Of the shaie Be 797 (31 March 2022 R 11 31} pertains to related parties. Refer nole 24
s i 31 March 2023 is as [allows:
Dstamfing for followimg peviods feom doe date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 6 menths 6 months -1 year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years More than 3 years I
(1) Undisputed Trade recenvables - - 28343 1,965 95 17059 24 46 6339 14.67 2.524 69
considered good
(11) Undisputed Trade Recenables - - - 102 - & RORTH 5112
considercd doublful
(i) Disputed Trade Recen ables considered - - 1598 G163 9169 2013 190 45
good
(1) Disputed Trade Receinables considered - 63575 4987 91 67 R1729
doublful
(1) Trade recen ables - unbilled 647 55 - - - - - - 647 55
64755 283,43 1.965 95 823 34 175.98 24R.05 R3O0 4.231.10
—ct
ek 2023 §s s fallows:
ulitrs (] Tallowing periods from due date of payment
Unbsilied Not due Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years L
(1) Undicputed Trade recenables - 34620 1,208 63 21730 23439 177 61 480 2.188.93
cousidered good
(1) Undisputed Trade Recervables - = 3.05 4068 43 73
conswdered doubitlul
() Disputed Trade Recenvables considered - 1598 6163 91 6Y 2113 190 43
good
(1v) Dispuled Trade Recenables considered - 7538 685 94 75 14 - 177 02
doubtful
{43 Trade feesivabiles « unbilled 6032 - - - - - - 36072
m——— 360,71 34620 130,01 28580 42388 23940
\
\
\




Tnnoyent Spaces | wed
CIN (A3H400KA2015P1C 103523
Nutes (o financial scieements (contitued)
(A i

wonnts w1 Labhy exeopt sare e aond pee sharc date and vmlc oo ot

16 Cash and bank bala

Partivalies Asat ASTIC
31 Murel 2023 31 March 2022
Ensh and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 490 P
Balances with banks
A CUITE et 1.039 33 2255
Other bank balances
- depostt account® 194 1 &4
Tl 144007 RN
SN
* Lien sk cd agzinsg bank guarasis:
¢ halancesdeposity
. Avat As at
Paticulars 31 March 2029 31 March 2022
[3alanzes sth bunks in current accounts 1.03933 2255
Bank deposits duc to mature within 12 months of the reporting date included under *Other bank balances I 94 1 84
Total 1,041.27 24.39
17 Short-term loans and advunces
N Asat As at
Particatars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
To partics other than related parties
(Unsecured. constdered gaod)
Balance with goscmiment authorities 3.80631 195272
Prepaid expenses 145922 75875
Employ ce advances 102 34 2079
Other adyances 198 83 108 54
(Unseenred. considered donbifild)
Balanec with goserunent authonties 56731 346 90
O:her advances 1208 1208
Less Provision for doubtful adyances (579 39) {358 9%)
Tutal S.566.70 2,‘}1”.2!-
1N Other curvent asscts
" As au Asnl
Particulurs o 31 Marsh 2023 31 March 2022
‘To gurtics ether than v elated purtics
{Unsecurcd, constdered gocdd)
Unbilled revenue - Rent Straightlining 142749 936.42
Leasc deposits 405 16 64,26
Other deposits 313 365
(Unsecr e corsndered wonbt/ul)
Lcasc deposits 6420 64 26
Less: Provision ful doubtfut deposis (64 26) (64 26)
Tunl 1.R3I5A0 1.0k 33

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Iznovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN

CASHOORKA2015PT 135523

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(4l amounts in Lakhs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

19

20

22

Revenue from operations

Particular As at As at
futars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rental income 47,407.31 27,853 57
Electricity charges 2,743.40 1,761 13
Maintcnance charges 3,800.17 2,740 54
Sale of goods 3,173.88 1.475.48
Others 2,11590 1,312.51
Total 59,240.66 35,143.22
Other income
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit on redemption of investments 88.12 2583
Interest income on income tax refund 187.89 31.47
Reversal of provision for impairment of Property. plant and cquipment - 58.80
Provision for doubtful debts written back - 59.31
Miscellaneous income 5.93 -
Total 281.94 175.41
Employee henefits expense
Particulars - o it kL

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salarics and wages 3,805.67 2,923.95
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 27) 107.81 76.23
Provision for employee stock compensation expense (refer note 32) 353.10 -
Stafl weliare expernises 57.79 49.06
Totsal 4,324.37 3,049.24
Finance costs

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest expense on borrowings

- From banks and financial institutions 391.46 187.05
- From others 56020 2,003.78
Provision of premiur: on redemption of debentures B 98.83
Other borrowing cosf 13566 70.69
Total 1,087.32 2,360.35
(This space has been intentionally left blank) /—E-é—-},:_



Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN U4SH400KA2015P1C 133323

Notes to financial statcments (continucd)

(Al amounts in Lakhs, except share data and per shure data, and unless otherwise staied)

23 Other expenses

Particulars s o
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rent 28,196 08 18,288 39
Power and fuel 3,712.24 1,962 04
Security expenses 1,436 12 885 20
Legal and professional charges* 304 73 24135
House keeping expenses 2,634 45 1,18217
Office expenses 34320 171.29
[nternet and website expenses 53281 31518
Rates and taxes 493 376
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 2,607 22 1,63242
- plant and machinery 11431 7419
- others 8802 83 37
Other service cost 817.54 58211
Communication 2188 17 86
Travelling and conveyance 569 10 14450
Printing and stationery 3531 3578
Brokerage expenises 1,127.02 63546
Business promotion 60 72 1030
Insurance 47 81 4793
Books and subscription 7576 5216
Provision for doubtful debts 648.59 -
Loss on sale off of property, piant and equipment and other intangible assets (net) 568
Property, plant and equipment written off 23.03
Depesits written oft - 2031
Provision-fordoubtfat-advancesand-deposits 220=—=- 423 24——
Miscellaneous expenses 933 198
Total 43.607.58 26.839.71
(*) Auditors remuneration excluding Goods and Service Tax (included in legal and professional charges)
Particulars T As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Audit fee 2345 20 00
Out of pocket expenses 2.48 0.80
25.93 20.80_

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Innovent Spaces Pri
CIN UH3I000IP2015PTC068253

Noles to financial statements (confinued)

(AN amomnrs ar Lakhs, except shere data and per share data, and wiless othersise sied)

24 Related party disclosuies

(1) Names of related parties and related party relationship
(A) Shareholders in the company with whom no (ransactions have taken place during the year
Aravali Investment Holdings, Mauritius

(B) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Companies and firms under common control
Carcernet Technologies Private Limited, India
Innoprop Spaces Privale Limited, India
Cuisines Enterprises, India

RAAS Group, India

Grub Group, India

Hirepro Consulting Private Limited, India

Key management personnel (KMP)

Rishi Das, Chief Executive Officer and Whole-lime Director
Meghna Agarwal, Chief Operating Officer and Whole-time Director
Anshuman Das, Director

(2) Details of transactions entered into with related parties along with balances as at year end are as given below:

-

Transactions during the year

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans from related parities
Rishi Das - 1,177 50
Anshuman Das - 808 00
Careernel Technologies Private Limited - 7.000 00
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd - 3,500 00
Loans repaid to related parities
Rishi Das 284 00 4.174 30
Anshuman Das 137 00 196100
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Lid 80 00 500 00
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 002 -
Performance deposit from related paritios
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 150 00
Hirepro Consnling Pyt Tad 15000
Performance deposit repaid to related parities
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 150 00
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd 150 00
Conversion of loans to share application money peading allotinent
Careernet Technologies Private Limited : - 6,999 98
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Lid - 2,920 00
Security deposit from related parity
Careernel Technologies Private Limited 150 00 120
Security deposit to related parity
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 161 69
Security deposit repaid to related parity
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 284 82 -
Interest accrued on loan from related parties
Rishi Das 148 77 595 26
Anshuman Das 141 24 364 93
Careernet Technologies Private Limited - 22778
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd - 1172
Interest accrued on performance deposit from related parties
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 459 -
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd 659
Rent expenses
Careernet Technologies Private Limited 354 44 178 61
Innoprop Spaces Private Limited 1,294 51 63193
Reimbursement of expenses
Innoprop Spaces Private Limited 10 36 5 66
Grub Group 155 22188
Meghna Agrawal 1407 -
Rishi Das 1,928 18 =
Purchase of Goods/ Services received
Careemnet Technologies Private Limited 13 08 572
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd 414 -
Innoprop Spaces Private Limited 600 2252
Grub Group 1,428 11 6493

Issue of Equity Shares including securities premium
Carcernet Technologies Private Limited
Hirepro Consulting Pvt Ltd

-~ ~




Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN UH34000020151M1C068253

Noles to financial statements (continued)

AN camounts i L akhs, except share data and per share deta, and unless otheneise siated)

24 Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions during the year (continued)

Asat
31 Marech 2023

As i
31 March 2022

Sale of Guods/ Services provided
ITnnoprop Spaces Private Limited
Careernet Technologies Private Limied
Hirepro Consulting Pyt Lid
Grub Group

Rental income
Carcernet Technologies Privale Limited

Professional Fees
Carecrnet Technologies Private Limited

Managerial remuneration
Rishi Das
Meghna Agrawal

36298
4114

035

503 01

5024

147 68
12552

146 16
1733

1415

1o 11

120 00
102 00

Manaerial remuneration mentioned above does not include gratuity and compensated abscnces payable to the directors as the same arc actuarially determined for the Company as a whole and separate figures for the directors

are not available

Balances receivable from and payable (o related parties

As at
31 Maveh 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Long-term borrowings

Rishi Das 78419 1.068 19
Anshuman Das 807 53 944 53
Short-term borrowings - N
Carcernet Technologies Private Limited - 002
Hirepro Consulting Private Limited - 80 00
Other current liabilities- Lease deposits received

Careernct Technologics Private Limited 23338 36820
Other current liabilities - Advance from customer:

Careernat Technologies Private Limited - 000
Other current linbilities  Othor Paynble

Innoprop Spaces Private Limited 284 01
Other current liabilities- Other payables

Careernet Technologies Private Limited 002

Grub Group 138

Other non-current assets- Lease deposit paid

Careernet Technologies Private Limited 161 62

Trade Receivables

Innoprop Spaces Private Limited = 2.21

Cuisines Enterprises 467 407

Ankalan web solutions Pvt Ltd 7 941

Careernet Technologies Private Limited 27

Grub Group 059 -

25 Countingent liabilities and commitments
As at As at

Particulars

31 Marel: 2023

31 March 2022

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 193 59 153 83
Total 193.59 153.83
There are no contingent liabilitics as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 Nil)
26 Earnings per share (EPS)
Earnings
Particulars As at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Profit / {Loss) for the year 2,063 01 (1.88227)
Less Preference dividend {00y (0,00)
Net profit / (loss) attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic EPS 2,063 Ol (1,882 27)
Add Dividend on non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (000 {0 00}
Net profit / (loss) adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS 2,063 01 (1,882 27)
Shares
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for calculation of basic EPS 18,25,496 16.44,608
Eccts of dilutive potential equity shares®
Scries A compulsorily convertible prelerence shares 5,84,044 -
Secries B compulsorily convertible preference shares 1,53.913 -
Weiuhted averape number of equily shares for calculation of diluted EPS 2563 453 16.44,608
Profit / {Losy) per share hasic = —H3A1 (114.45)

Profit / Lgss) [T Ftmag
*As 1 Marclr 3, the
o




Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIA
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Notes to financial statements (continucd)
U ooy o L akls, exeepr share data and per share daia, and unless othenise siared)

2]

(i)

(b

28

Lmployee Benefits
Delined contribunon plans

The € ompany makes contnibutions. determined as a speaified percentage of employee salanes. i respect ol qualifying employees towards provident fund which is a defined contribution plan The Company has no abligations
othei than 1o make the specified contributions The cantributions are charged to the statement of prolit and loss The amount recognized as expense towards contribution to provident fund for the year ended 31 March 2023

rezates 1o Rs 107 81 (31 March 2022 Rs 76 23)

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees  Under this plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gels a gratuity on departure at 15 days of fast drawn salary for each completed

s not applicabie to the Company

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss and amounts recognized i the Balance Sheet for the respective plans

The principal assumptions used in determining eratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below

of service Gratuily is thus paid (o the employees on separation 1n accordance with the prosisions of Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 The scheme 1s unfunded and hence the disclosure with respeet to plan assels as per AS-15

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 730% 6 40%
Employee turnover 22 65% 22 00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality rate { age in years) Indian Assured Lives Indian  Assured  Lives
Montality (2012-14) Table Mortality (2012-14)
Salary escalation rate 15 00% 15 00%
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 76 16 54 92
Interest cost on benefit oblization 1535 706
Expected return on plan asscts - -
Net actuarial loss recognized in the year (28 54) 7399
Net henefil expense 62.97 135.97
Reconciliation of present value ol the obligation and the fair value of the plan assefs
Particulars As al As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligatian

- Current 3639 4172
- Non-rurient e .= = oo 248.30 21043
_Lin%ility recognized in the balance snest _— p— 284.65 252.15
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation zre as follow s:
Particulars As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
+ defined benefit obligation o 257 15 120 56
Current service cost 76.16 5493
Interest cost 1535 705
Benefits paid (3041 (4 40)
Net actuarial loss [gain) recoemized in the year (refer note below) (28 54) 7399
s 284.69 252,15

Closing delined benefit abligatinn

Amounts for current and previous four years are as follows:

Particulars As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Net acluarial loss (gain) recognized on plan liabilities (3043) 7399 516 (1115) in
Defined benefit obligation 284 69 25215 120 56 7743 45 84
Scgment information
The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segments The Company's sole business is sub-leasi ved office spaces, as a service, of fully or partly equipped premises and

provides a unique 'one-stop’ experience (o clients, its principal ucographical segment is India Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these financial statements relate to this primary business segment Further, the Company

generates its income onty in India and accordingly, no disclosures are required under secondary sewment reporting

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN UHSH00LP20ISPTC068233

Nutes (o financial statements (continued)

(U amomnts i 1k, except st e deatee and per shere duta, apd idess othense staicd)

29 Leases
(a} Operating lease as lessee
The € ampany has taken a aumber aof corporate buildings under operating leases: The corporate burldings rypieally run for @ period of 10-20 vears. with an ophion 1o renew the lease aller this penod  Lease pavments are meieased

eveny one Lo three vears

Particalars As al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cancellable 5.926 75 292245
Non-cancelluble 22209-33 1536594
28.196.08 18,288.39
Non-cancetlable operating lease rentals puyable (minimum lease payments) under these leases are as follows
Particulars Asal As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payable within one year 23,576 35 19.146 34
Payable between one and five years 29,510 34 34,435 99
Pavable after five years - 34503
53,086.69 53.927.36
(b) Operaling lease as lessor
The Company has lcased out it's corporate buildinzs under operating leases The lease term is in the range 3-5 vears
Particulars As al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cancellable 8.667 68 7213 15
Non-cancellable 38,739 63 20,640.42
47,407.31 27.853.57
The future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Pacticulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Receivable within one year 36.794 84 23,069 46
Receivable between one and five years 45,738 34 23,343 94
Receivable afier five years - .
82.533.18 46,413.40
30 Earnings and cxpenditure in foreign currency
-P'lrticuhrs el Ll
- ’ 31 March 2033 31 March 741227
Beoks and subscription 310 =
There are no carnings in foreign currency for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 7 here are ne fureign currency denominated payables/ receivables at the balance sheet date for the current and previous year
31 Deferred tax assets (Net)
. =5 Asat _ As al
Particulars
e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess of depreciation allowable under the income-tax laws over depreciation provided (60 17) (78 72)
for in the book
(60.17) {78.72)
Deferred tax assets
Unabosrbed depreciation 1,104 98 1,13202
Provision [or gratuily and compensated absences 3919 6289
Provision for Interest on MSME 361 344
Total deferred tax assets 1,087.61 1.119.63
Less Deferred Lax assets not recognised (refer note below) (1,087 61) (1,119 63)

Deferred tax assel / {linhilities) (Nei) =
Note The Company |ias carry formard lusses under tax laws and pecordingly, deferred tax asscts can be recognized only if there is a virtual certninty supported by convineing evidence that sufficient fisture 1axable incame will be

available against which such deferred tax asscts which can be realized Since the Company could not cstablish the required certainty, deferred Lax assets have not been recognised

32 Employee stock option plan (‘'ESOP’)
On 26 July 2022, the board of directors approved Lhe equity settled “ESOP Scheme 20227 for issue of stock options Lo various employees (as defined in the policy) of the Company  The Plan cntitles key employees and senior
management personned 1o purchase shares in the Company at the stipulated exercise price, subject 10 compliance with vesting conditions According Lo the scheme. the employees will be entitled to options, subject 10 satisfaction
af the prescribed vesting conditions
The Company measures Lhe compensation cost relating to the stock option using the intrinsic value method The compensation cost is amortised over the period of the stock option The Company has accounted for the ESOP
wranted as per The Guidance Note on Accounting for Share Based payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounts to Rs 353 10 lakhs (31 March 2022 Nil)
The Board has approved the issuc of 44,572 oplions under it's ESOP Plan out of 57,200 options Each option comprises onc underlying cquily share of Re 1 each The options granted vest over a period of 1 to 4 years

The following table summarizes the transactions of stock oplion under "ESOP scheme 2022"

A . A As at As at
No. of options granted, exercised and forfcited 31 Farch 3003 31 March 2022
(3prstanding ai the hepinning of the year E 3
Granted during the year 37,730 00 -
Tolal 3773000 -
Forfcited during the year 41500 -
Cancelled during the year - 5

37,315 00

Outstanding al the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year
Werght averape remaining contractual life (in years)

Range ofe




Innovent Spaces Private Limited

CIN UH54000P20157 10068253

Noles to financial statements (continued)

(AN amonnis i Lahbs, exeept share dota and per sharc date and uness othervise siated)

33 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministn of Voo, Small and Medium Enterprises has issucd an oflice memorandum dared 26 August 2008 which 1ecommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention m- their correspondence with is
customers the Enteenrencnrs Memorandum Number as allocated afier fihng of the Memorandum i accordance with the Micto, Small and Medm Enterprises Development Act 2006 ( the Act ) Accordingly the disclosure m
respeet of the amounts payable Lo such enterpnses as at 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company Further in view of the Management. the impact of
interest, ifany. thal may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet dute

Particulars As at As af

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach year

- Principal amount duc to micro and small enterprises

Trade Payables 869 10 709 71
Capnal creditors 1.856 56 1,199 60
- Interast duc on the above 1443 1374
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts 3,255 37 1,512 38

of the payment made (o the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid bul beyond - -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of the year 1443 1374
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 113 45 99 02
interest dues as above are actually pmid to the small enterprise

The abuve disclosures are provided by the Company based on the information available with the Company in respect i the reglutration status of s vendordsuppliers

34 Additional regulatory information required by Scheduie 111

(a)
(b)
(cY

()
(c)

(]
(¢}
(h)
0}

The Company docs not have any Benami property where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
The Company does not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act. 1956 during the financial year

The Company does nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companics beyond the statutory period However the Company is in process of creating the charge with respect 1o
Axis Bank Car Loan

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial ycar

Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(is). including foreign
entilies (“Tntermediaries™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bencficiarics)

Further the Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shalf whether, direcly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
hehalf of the Cempany (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Bencficiaries

There 1s no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 that has not been recorded in the books of account

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

The Company has not used funds raised on short-term basis for long-term purposes except with respect to newative working capital position arising on account of tradc payables and creditors for capital goods balance
amounting 15 Rs 11,344 50 lakhs, The Company has invested the money in property. plant and equipments

35 Working capitnl limits statement
The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The recorciliation of quarterly statcmant filed by the Company and books of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are

31 March 2023

Amount as per books ol Amount as reported in W hether
Quarter ended Name of bank Particulars e tine quarterly retwrn/ Amount of difference Reasons for difference return/statement
staterment subsequently rectified
30 September 2022 Axis Bank Stock and Book debt stalements 2,53731 2,564 81 2750 The differences pertains to - Yes
(a) TDS and advance
payments were set off at a
. later point in time which are
31 December 2022 Axis Bank Stock and Book debt statements 3,440 16 343474 (542) . Yes
adjusted a1 the time of
reconciliation of books
(b) Payments received from
31 March 2023 Axis Bank Stock and Book debt statements 4,698 03 4,621 76 (76 27) customers which are reflected Yes
as unapplied credits in the
absence of payment advice
e b
31 March 2022
Amount as per books of Amount as reported in Whether
Quarter ended Name of bank  Particulars cconni the quarterly return/  Amount of difference Reasons for difference return/statement
statement subsequently rectified
30 June 2021 Deutsche Bank Salary, office expenses and rent 6,758 38 6,753 45 493 The differences are duc to No
Deutsche Bank  Advance payment 568 10 250 85 31725 the fact that quarterly No
30 September 2021 Deutsche Bank  Salary, office expenses and rent 7,455 56 6,301 67 1,153 89 expense statement submitted No
Deutsche Bank  Advance payment 81750 264 17 55333 lo bank was prepared on No
31 December 2021 Decutsche Bank Salary, office expenses and rent 8,300 82 6,556 89 1,743 93 Ppayment basis, however the No
Deutsche Bank  Advance payment 828 96 27432 554 64 books of accounts have been No
31 March 2022 Deutsche Bank  Salary. office expenses and rent 8,451 42 761504 836 3§ prepared on an accrual basis No
Deutsche Bank  Advinee pviment 11206 25803 {17597)
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

CAH amonnts i L akhs except share deta and per share deta and unless others e sired)

36 A ical ralios

I.(:',:ln Numerator Denominator 31 March ;;;: 31 I\'Inrch::)zuzl YOY change in %  Reason for change
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 047 029 59% ]
Debt - Equity Ratio Total debt Shareholder's equity 044 245 -§2% (ii)
Debl service coserage 1atio Net Profil after taxes 4+ Non-cash Inlerest and leasc 1 76 029 496%% (iii)
operaling expenses + Interest + other payments + Principal
adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed repayments
assets
Return on equity ratio Nel Profirs alier taxes — Preference  Average Sharcholder's 013 {047) -128% (iv)
Dividend equity
Trade receivable wrnover ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 1941 13 42 45% v)
Trade payable turnover ratio Purchases + Other cxpenses Average trade payable 1528 890 72% (vi)
Nel capital turnover ratio Net sales = Tolal sales - sales return  Average working capital (439) (242) 82% (vii)
= Current assets -
Current liabilities
Net profit ratio Profit for the year Net sales = Tolal sales - 003 {0 05) 165% {vii)
sales return
Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and taxes  Capital Employed = 007 005 -46% (ix)
Tangible Net Worth
(Total equity -
Intangibles assets) +
Total Borrowings -
Deferred Tax Asset
Return on investment Average investment - 012 100% (x)

Profit on redemplion of investments

during the year

Mote The Company is a s

(i) Increase in current ratio is due to growth in revenues in the current year as compared to previous year which has resulted in increased balances of bank, trade receivables and GST reccivable
(i) Deciease in debt equity ratio is due to higher amount of debi outstanding which were availed for payment to capital creditors for expansion of business and also an increase in net worth due to infusion of equity and
preference share capitl at a premium and profits made during the year Also the Company has repaid Non-convertible debenture loan in the FY 22-23 which was at a very high interest cost

{iii} [ncrease in debt service cove

due to profits earned during the year and a consequent increase in repavment of non-convertible debentures in the current year
(iv) Increase in return on 2quity is due to profits earmed in current year and also an increase in net worth due to infusion of equity and preference share capital at a premium and profits made during the year

(v) Increase in trade receivable turnover ratio is due to growth in revenues in the current year as compared to previous year which has resulted in increased balance of trade reccivables as well
(vi) increase in Lrade payable urnover ratio is due to growth in revenues in the current year as compared to previous year which has resulted in increased purchases, direct expenses and other expenses as well

(vii) Decrease in net capital lurnover ratio is due to growth in revenues in the current year as compared to previous year and also due to negative workiny capital

(vlll) Tncrease In net profuiatio 1s due w prufits eanmed ju caient year which is scsultant of growth in revenues during the ourront yoar

{ix) 'ncrease in_return.cn_capital_emploved is due 1o the earmmzs made dusing the vear as compared 10 the [nss in presious year and #l@ aninetease inonel worth die fo-infiision of equity ane prefere

premium and profits made during tno yoear

(x) The decrease in return on invesiments is due 10 sale of mutual funds during the year

company, enuaged in (he busness of one-stop maraied office space services includmy sofi services and supply of various consuimables, including IT products, office stationery ani) supplies. fod
and beverages etc on a just-in-time need basis of the customers Hence, inventory turnover ratio is not applicable for the company

hare capital ab 4

37 The Company is not required to contribute towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") as required by schedule V11 of the Act as it has incurred losses before tax during the previous three tinancial years

38 Previoas year's figures hav e been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s classification
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